Southern Illinois University Carbondale OpenSIUC

SIU Bulletins and Course Catalogs

University Archives

1965

1965-1967 Southern Illinois University Bulletin (Financial Assistance)

Southern Illinois University Carbondale

Follow this and additional works at: http://opensiuc.lib.siu.edu/ua bcc

Recommended Citation

, . "1965-1967 Southern Illinois University Bulletin (Financial Assistance)." (Jan 1965).

This Article is brought to you for free and open access by the University Archives at OpenSIUC. It has been accepted for inclusion in SIU Bulletins and Course Catalogs by an authorized administrator of OpenSIUC. For more information, please contact opensiuc@lib.siu.edu.

Financial Assistance
1965-1967



Southern Illinois Jniversity Bulletin

OBJECTIVES OF SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY

TO EXALT BEAUTY
In God,
in nature, and
in art;
Teaching how to love the best
but to keep the human touch;

TO ADVANCE LEARNING
In all lines of truth
wherever they may lead,
Showing how to think
rather than what to think,
Assisting the powers
of the mind
In their self-development;

TO FORWARD IDEAS AND IDEALS
In our democracy,
Inspiring respect for others
as for ourselves,
Ever promoting freedom
with responsibility;

TO BECOME A CENTER OF ORDER AND LIGHT

That knowledge may lead

to understanding

And understanding

to wisdom.

Financial Assistance
1965-1967



Southern Illinois University Bulletin

This Issue

of the Southern Illinois University Bulletin covers in detail questions concerning financial assistance and applies to both the Carbondale Campus and the Edwardsville Campus. It supersedes Volume 6, Number 8.

THE FOLLOWING issues of the Southern Illinois University Bulletin may be obtained free from Central Publications, Southern Illinois University, Carbondale, Illinois 62903.

Schedule of Classes. Please specify *quarter* (fall, winter, spring, or summer) and *campus* (Carbondale or Edwardsville).

General Studies Catalog.

Graduate Catalog.

Division of Technical and Adult Education.

Financial Assistance.

Undergraduate Catalog. The catalog will be available (by October, 1965) for examination in high school guidance offices and libraries throughout Illinois and in some other states. Copies will be furnished free to educational institutions upon request and to new students upon matriculation. The catalog may be purchased at the University Bookstore for \$1; mail orders should be sent to Central Publications and must include remittance payable to Southern Illinois University.

Contents:



Board of Trustees; Officers of Administration	1V
Financial Assistance	1
Types of Financial Assistance	1
Scholarships	1
Awards	2
Prizes	2
Grants-In-Aid	
Private Agency Awards	
Student Loan Funds	3
Carbondale Campus	
Edwardsville Campus	
Application Procedure	
If you have not attended college or University	
If you have attended another college or University	
If you are currently enrolled at Southern Illinois University	
FEDERAL ASSISTANCE	
National Defense Student Loan Program	
Eligibility and Terms	5
Federal Assistance for Military Veterans	7
Federal Assistance for Nursing	
Eligibility and Terms	
Public Law 634	
Public Law 815	
State Assistance	10
State Teacher Education Scholarships	
State Scholarship Act	
General Assembly Scholarships	
County Scholarships	
Vocational Rehabilitation	
Illinois Military Scholarship	
The Governor's Committee for Veterans Rehabilitation and	
Employment	12
Scholarships, Awards, Grants-in-aid, Prizes	12
Carbondale Campus	
Edwardsville Campus	15
Student Loan Funds	
Carbondale Campus	15
	16
T	10



Board of Trustees andOfficers of Administration

BOARD OF TRUSTEES	Term expires
Kenneth L. Davis, Chairman, Harrisburg	1969
Melvin C. Lockard, Secretary, Mattoon	1971
Martin Van Brown, Carbondale	1967
Harold R. Fischer, Granite City	1969
F. Guy Hitt, Benton	1971
Arnold H. Maremont, Winnetka	1967
Lindell W. Sturgis, Metropolis	1971
Ray Page (Ex-officio), Springfield	
Louise Morehouse, Recorder	

OFFICERS OF ADMINISTRATION

Delyte W. Morris, President Ralph W. Ruffner, Vice-President for Student and Area Services Frank C. Adams, Director of Student Work Program and Financial Assistance

Financial Assistance



CARBONDALE: Director Frank C. Adams; Associate Director Raymond P. DeJarnett

Coordinator Fred Dakak; Assistant Coordinator Mary M. Beimfohr

EDWARDSVILLE: Director Frank C. Adams; Assistant Director Philip Eckert

The basic goal of the student work and financial assistance program at Southern Illinois University is to enable talented young men and women who may lack financial resources to enter and continue experiences in higher education. The program has been organized to function as an integral part of the total educational experiences of the student. An attempt is made not only to assist deserving students with their financial obligations through the program but also to contribute to their general development and learning experiences.

The program of student work and financial assistance includes work onand off-campus, cooperative work-study programs, summer employment, the federal work-study program and scholarships, awards, prizes, grants-in-aid, private agency awards, student loan funds.

The comparative limitations of such forms of assistance, in terms of both number and amounts available, make it inadvisable for an undergraduate student to expect to meet all university expenses from such sources. The family, including parents, friends, and relatives, is the primary resource for a student's college costs. The student himself normally supplies one-third to one-half of his finances through work during school or during a selected quarter of nonattendance, and through his savings. The financial assistance program assists in making up the difference between college costs and the student's income and other resources.

The applications for both student work and financial assistance require the applicant to estimate his budget for the coming year in terms of both income and expense. An estimate of certain expenses, including room and board, may be obtained from the Admissions Office or from *Guidelines for Prospective Students* issue of the *Southern Illinois University Bulletin*. Applications and information pertaining to student work are available at the Student Work and Financial Assistance Office on the campus at Carbondale and Edwardsville.

TYPES OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

SCHOLARSHIPS

Scholastic potential and financial need are the two most important criteria utilized in selecting recipients of scholarships. Freshman applicants must have ranked in the upper third of their graduating class and have achieved

a minimum comprehensive high school average equal to that of B. Enrolled students at the University must have achieved a minimum over-all average of B for all course work completed at the university level.

The degree of need may also be used in determining the amount of

assistance granted from a particular scholarship fund.

Other factors being equal, the students with the highest grade averages will be given preference in determining recipients of the scholarships.

In order to stimulate attendance at the junior colleges in Illinois and to encourage the most qualified graduates of junior college programs to attend Southern Illinois University, the Board of Trustees has established 50 two-year tuition scholarships annually for the most deserving graduates of junior college programs in the state of Illinois. These scholarships pay tuition only, and for a student to be eligible, he must:

1. Be a graduate of an Illinois Junior College;

2. Be in the upper 1/4 of his class or have a 4.00 (B) grade point average;

3. Be a full-time student at the University—12 credit hours per quarter;

4. Maintain a 4.0 (B) grade point average while at the University.

AWARDS

Financial assistance is occasionally granted to students who have evidenced superior potential either at the high school or the university level in either scholarly or cocurricular endeavors. Freshman applicants for awards are required to have ranked in the upper half of their graduating class and to have achieved a minimum comprehensive high school average of C. Enrolled students must have achieved a minimum over-all average of C for all work completed at the university level.

As a part of the award program, the Board of Trustees of the University has established tuition awards known as Southern Illinois University Scholarship and Activity Awards. Normally, this is the only form of scholarship or award assistance for which entering students may be considered other than state-wide programs as enumerated on pages 12–15 of this bulletin.

PRIZES

Prizes may be awarded to students who have evidenced superior achievement in specific areas or departments of the University. These prizes frequently take the form of books, medals, or trophies rather than money and are presented at various times during the year. Eligibility varies considerably from one prize to another. Interested students are invited to contact the specific departments or groups concerned with selecting the recipients for further details.

GRANTS-IN-AID

Frequently, organizations or individuals establish funds at the University to assist certain students with their educational expenses. Usually such students are selected by the donor, although recommendations are sometimes made through the Scholarships and Loans Committee or the various de-

partments of the University. Specific criteria, including grade requirements, used for the selection of recipients of these grants are established by the donor. Recipients of such aid should be full-time students and must have achieved a minimum over-all average of C for all work completed at the university level.

PRIVATE AGENCY AWARDS

Industries and private organizations may provide funds to individuals either directly or through the Scholarships and Loans Committee. The requirements relative to each of these awards are specified by the individual donors. Generally, application must be made directly to the donor; the University will assist interested students in applying for such awards.

STUDENT LOAN FUNDS

CARBONDALE CAMPUS

Through the generosity of friends of the University, several short-term loan funds have been established to be used by needy and deserving students. There are two basic requirements which are applicable to most of these funds: The applicant must be a full-time student who has completed one quarter in attendance at the University, and he must have a minimum comprehensive university average of C. Amounts available vary with the individual loan funds. Generally, freshmen and sophomores may borrow up to \$75; juniors, seniors, and graduate students are permitted to borrow up to \$150. In addition, a private foundation has established a loan fund at the University from which qualified juniors, seniors and graduates under 25 years of age may borrow up to \$600. Another private foundation has established a loan fund from which qualified graduates may borrow up to \$500 for a period of three years. The rate of interest and method of repayment vary with the particular loan fund, but the usual rate of interest on funds administered directly by the University is three per cent per year.

EDWARDSVILLE CAMPUS

Several short-term loan funds have been established. The applicant must be a full-time student who has completed 30 hours at Southern Illinois University and must have a minimum cumulative average of C. Students who meet these requirements may normally borrow from \$25 to \$75 for a period of four months. A service fee of one per cent of the principal is charged for such loans.

Students who have completed their first year of college are eligible to apply through the co-ordinator of financial assistance for loans from local and home-town banks which are members of the United Student Aid Fund, Inc., program. Undergraduates are eligible to borrow \$1,000 per year up to a total of \$4,000. Graduate students are eligible to borrow \$2,000 per year up to a total of \$4,000. Interest rate is 6 per cent per annum (simple interest calculated on declining balances). Installment repayments begin four months after completion of undergraduate or graduate education.

APPLICATION PROCEDURE FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

IF YOU HAVE NOT ATTENDED A COLLEGE OR A UNIVERSITY

- 1. Apply for admission to the Admissions Office of the campus you plan to attend. Request that your principal forward a transcript of your high school record through your seventh semester. It is advisable that this be done shortly after the beginning of your final semester of high school.
- 2. Request an application for the financial assistance program from the Financial Assistance Office of the campus you plan to attend. Request that your high school principal complete the postal card accompanying this application. Arrange to take the test battery administered by the American College Testing Program (A.C.T.); information relative to testing dates may be obtained from your high school guidance director or principal or from the Registrar's Office of the campus which you plan to attend.
- 3. Submit your application for financial assistance. Do not apply for a specific scholarship or award. The Scholarships and Loans Committee of the University will evaluate each applicant in terms of his eligibility for all forms of available assistance. Applications to be considered for the fall quarter must be returned to the Financial Assistance Office of the appropriate campus between January 1 and May 15.
- 4. Applicants for assistance to become effective in the fall will be notified of decisions concerning their applications during the summer prior to the opening of the fall quarter.

IF YOU HAVE ATTENDED ANOTHER COLLEGE OR UNIVERSITY

- 1. Apply for admission to the Admissions Office of the campus you plan to attend. Request that the registrar of each school you have attended send a transcript of your record to that office. Applications for financial assistance cannot be considered prior to completion of these procedures.
- 2. Request an application for the financial assistance program from the Financial Assistance Office of the campus you plan to attend.
- 3. Submit your application for financial assistance. Do not apply for a specific scholarship or award. The Scholarships and Loans Committee of the University will evaluate each applicant in terms of his eligibility for all forms of available assistance. Applications to be considered for the fall quarter must be returned to the Financial Assistance Office of the appropriate campus between January 1 and May 15.
- 4. Applicants for assistance to become effective in the fall will be notified of decisions concerning their applications during the summer prior to the opening of the fall quarter.

IF YOU ARE CURRENTLY ENROLLED AT SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY

1. Determine whether you meet the minimum requirement for any of the forms of financial assistance currently available. Generally, scholarships require a minimum over-all university average of B, and awards require a C. Consult the earlier sections of this bulletin for details.

2. Obtain an application for the financial assistance program from the

Financial Assistance Office of the campus you are attending.

3. Submit your application for financial assistance. Do not apply for a specific scholarship or award. The Scholarships and Loans Committee of the University will evaluate each applicant in terms of his eligibility for all forms of available assistance. Applications to be considered for the fall quarter must be returned to the Financial Assistance Office of the appropriate campus between January 1 and May 15.

4. Applicants for assistance to become effective in the fall will be notified of decisions concerning their applications during the summer prior to

the opening of the fall quarter.

In addition to the various forms of financial assistance administered through the Scholarships and Loans Committee, there are several other forms of assistance available to students at the University. Their descriptions follow.

FEDERAL ASSISTANCE

NATIONAL DEFENSE STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM

The National Defense Student Loan Program, established under Title II of the National Defense Education Act of 1958, is a long-term program from which eligible and deserving students may be granted substantial loans to supplement other income for educational purposes.

ELIGIBILITY AND TERMS

1. United States Nationals. Only undergraduate or graduate students who are United States Nationals (citizens or persons who are in the U.S. in a permanent resident status) are eligible to borrow under terms of this student loan program.

2. Hours. Undergraduate students must carry a minimum of eight (8) credit hours per quarter. Graduate students must carry a minimum of six (6) credit hours per quarter and four (4) credit hours during the eight-

week summer session.

- 3. Scholarship. An incoming freshman applicant must have ranked in the upper third of his graduating class to be considered for loan assistance. A freshman not meeting this requirement may make application during his first quarter of attendance and if academically eligible as noted below will receive payment at the beginning of the following quarter. Undergraduate students must have and maintain a 3.00 (C) grade point average for all work at Southern Illinois University. A graduate student enrolling for the first time, must be unconditionally accepted to the graduate school and working toward a degree. Graduate students must have and maintain a 4.00 (B) over-all grade point average and have a 4.00 grade point average for all work taken at Southern Illinois University.
- 4. Need. The primary condition of eligibility is the applicant's need of the requested loan to complete his course of study. The financial capa-

bilities of both the applicant and his family (even in the case of a married student) will be evaluated in determining need. The University appreciates the fact that some students may wish to be financially independent, but this in and of itself does not justify need. A single student owning or possessing an automobile is requested not to seek assistance through this fund, unless he commutes or has other special circumstances.

- 5. Amount of Loan. The amount of the loan shall not be more than the borrower actually needs to make up the difference between his resources and his college-related expenses. In view of the estimated expenses at the University and the opportunity for part-time employment and scholarship and award aid, the normal maximum loan will be limited to \$250 per quarter for undergraduates and \$625 per quarter for graduate students. Whatever the actual need, the Act sets maximum limits of \$1,000 in any one academic year and \$5,000 in the aggregate for undergraduate students, and \$2,500 in any one academic year and \$10,000 in the aggregate for graduate students.
- 6. Use of Loan. A National Defense Student Loan will be used only for university-related expenses: tuition and required fees, books and supplies, room and board, ordinary and necessary personal maintenance. It shall not be used for car payments, marriage expenses, refinancing accumulated debts, moving to a place of employment, buying equipment to start a business, or buying a house.
- 7. Special Consideration. While making loans available to needy students in any field, the Act specifies that "in the selection of students to receive loans . . . special consideration shall be given to: (a) students with a superior academic background who express a desire to teach in elementary and secondary schools, and (b) students whose academic background indicates a superior capacity or preparation in science, mathematics, engineering, and modern foreign language."
- 8. Promissory Note. The borrower shall be required to sign a promissory note payable to Southern Illinois University.
- 9. Interest. No interest is charged while the borrower is in full-time attendance at an institution of higher education or during any period, not exceeding three years, that he is serving in the armed forces of the United States. Simple interest at the rate of three per cent per year on the unpaid balance will begin to accrue one year from the date the borrower ceases to be a full-time student.
- 10. Repayment. Repayment must begin not later than two years after a borrower ceases to be a full-time student at an institution of higher education. A schedule of installment payments commensurate with the borrower's financial status must be arranged at the time of his separation from the University. Repayment in accordance with a ten-year schedule of graduated periodic installments is the maximum permissible under terms of the Act.
- 11. Cancellation Provisions. The loan, and interest thereon, of any borrower who serves as a full-time teacher in a public elementary or secondary school is canceled up to a maximum of fifty per cent, at the rate of ten per cent of the amount of the loan plus interest thereon, which was unpaid on

the first day of such service, for each academic year of service. The Act also provides that liability for repayment of the National Defense Student Loan is cancelled upon the death of the borrower, or in the event that he becomes totally and permanently disabled.

- 12. Loyalty Oath. Each applicant for a loan must subscribe to an oath of allegiance to the United States of America and this oath must be taken and subscribed to before a notary public or other officer authorized to perform such function under Illinois law. This must be done before the application can be considered.
- 13. Married Students. Students married less than one year are not eligible for loan consideration. However, they may apply with the understanding that they will receive no portion of the loan until they have been married for a year. Married students applying for loans offer an extraordinary problem of need assessment, because many extra expenses considered minimum for married status are difficult to classify as college-related expenses. Ordinarily, need will be measured on a standard of expectation of family-help and self-help along with the student's own presentation of his problem and estimated need.
- 14. Applications. Application forms may be obtained in the Financial Assistant's Office. These applications should be returned to this office after being carefully and completely prepared by the applicant. Blank items will delay action on the application. The applicant will be informed of the Scholarships and Loans Committee's decision within a reasonable period.

FEDERAL ASSISTANCE FOR MILITARY VETERANS

Educational benefits for most veterans of World War II have elapsed. A person having a service-incurred disability may qualify as a recipient of benefits under Public Law 16 or 894, the latter being an amendment to Public Law 16. Public Law 16 is intended for veterans who received their disability between September 16, 1940, and July 25, 1947, while Public Law 894 is intended for veterans who received their disability between June 27, 1950, and an unestablished date in the future. Under Public Laws 16 or 894 the veteran's tuition, fees, special equipment and supplies, and subsistence will be paid for by the United States government through the Veterans Administration.

Persons who have been in active military service between June 27, 1950, and January 31, 1955, who have served at least ninety days, and who have been discharged under conditions other than dishonorable may be eligible for educational benefits under the Veterans Readjustment Assistance Act of 1952 (Public Law 550 or "Korean G.I. Bill"). Application forms and additional information concerning these benefits may be obtained from the Registrar's Office, the Student Affairs Division, the Veterans Administration, or the local Illinois Veterans Commission Office. Veterans are urged to apply for training at least two months prior to enrolling in the University. Experience has shown that a period of two or three months elapses be-

Experience has shown that a period of two or three months elapses before a veteran participating in such a program receives his first check. It is advisable, therefore, that each veteran be prepared to finance himself during his first two or three months of attendance at the University.

FEDERAL ASSISTANCE FOR NURSING

The Nursing Student Loan Fund established under part B of Title VIII of Public Health Service Act as amended by the Nurses Training Act of 1964, is a long-term program from which eligible and deserving students may be granted substantial loans to supplement other income for educational purposes. The purpose of this program is to increase the opportunities for training of nurses through stimulating and assisting in the establishment in professional schools of nursing loan funds from which low interest loans may be made to students in need thereof to pursue their course of study.

ELIGIBILITY AND TERMS

1. Grades. High school seniors in the upper one third of their graduating class may apply for a loan during their last semester if they have been admitted to the University. Undergraduate students must have and maintain a 3.00 (C) overall grade point average and a 3.00 (C) grade point average for all work at Southern Illinois University.

The graduate students must have and maintain a 4.00 (B) overall graduate grade point average and a 4.00 (B) grade point average for all graduate work at Southern Illinois University.

2. Hours. Undergraduate students must carry a minimum of twelve (12) credit hours per quarter and ten (10) credit hours during the eightweek summer session.

Graduate students must carry a minimum of ten (10) credit hours per quarter and six (6) credit hours during the eight-week summer session.

3. Miscellaneous. Applicants must be enrolled in college-grade courses leading to an associate, bachelor's, master's or doctoral degree.

Graduate students must be unconditionally admitted to the Graduate School and working toward a degree.

An applicant or recipient must not be on disciplinary probation.

Applicants must be citizens of the United States or United States nationals.

Students who attend the summer sessions only are not eligible to apply.

The law states that in designating a loan recipient, a school shall give preference to persons who enter a school of nursing as first year students after September 4, 1964.

- 4. Basis of Loans (small). In addition to the above-stated criteria, all recipients of loans will be determined on the basis of the financial need of the student. This need will also determine the amount of the loan granted during a given period. The amount of the loan shall not be more than the borrower actually needs to make up the difference between his resources and his college-related expenses.
- 5. Use of Loan. Nursing Student Loans will be used only for University-related expenses: tuition and required fees, books and supplies, room and board, ordinary and necessary personal maintenance. It shall not be used for car payments, marriage expenses, re-financing accumulated debts, moving to a place of employment, buying equipment to start a business or

buying a house. Students must present adequate justification for the possession or operation of an automobile at Southern Illinois University to be eligible for a loan.

- 6. Married Students. Applicants married less than one year at the time the first payment of the loan request would be due are ineligible for loan consideration. Married students applying for loans offer a unique problem of need assessment because many extra expenses considered minimum for married status are difficult to classify as college-related expenses. Ordinarily, need will be measured on a standard of expectation of family-help and selfhelp along with the student's own presentation of his problem and estimated need. Financial statements must be completed by both sets of parents.
- 7. Terms. In general terms, repayment of the principal of the loan, plus interest computed at the "going Federal rate," which for 1966 is $4\frac{1}{2}$ per cent per annum, is to be accomplished at the rate of ten (10) per cent per year, beginning one year after completion of, or withdrawal from the educational program. The repayment schedule may be deferred up to three years if the borrower enters the military service. If possible, early repayment of the loan is encouraged. The borrower shall be required to sign a promissory note payable to Southern Illinois University.
- 8. Cancellation Provisions. The loan, and interest thereon, of any borrower who serves as a Professional Nurse in a nonprofit or public institution (including teaching in any of the fields of nurse training or service as an administrator, supervisor, or consultant in any of the fields of nursing) is canceled up to a maximum of fifty (50) per cent, at the rate of ten (10) per cent of the amount of the loan plus interest thereon, which was unpaid on the first day of such service, for each year of service. The Act also provides that liability for repayment of the Nursing Student Loan is canceled upon the death of the borrower, or in the event that he becomes totally and permanently disabled.
- 9. Amount of Loan. The maximum amount available to an individual borrower in an academic year is \$1,000.
- 10. Restrictions. A student who is enrolled in a school of nursing that participates in the Nursing Student Loan Program is prohibited by the Nurse Training Act of 1964 from receiving a loan from any other Federal loan fund.
- 11. Applications. Application forms may be obtained at the Student Work and Financial Assistance Office. The application must be returned to the Student Financial Assistance Office after being carefully and completely prepared (in ink or typed) by the applicant. Blank items will delay action on the application. The applicant will be informed of the Scholarships and Loans Committee's decision within a reasonable period of time.

PUBLIC LAW 634

Benefits under Public Law 634 are available to the child or children of a person who died of an injury or disease incurred or aggravated in the line of duty in active service in the armed forces during World War I, World War II, or the Korean conflict and whose service did not terminate under dishonorable conditions. In addition, if the veteran's child served on active duty with the armed forces he must have been separated under conditions other than dishonorable.

Payments cannot be made while the veteran's child is serving on a tour of duty with the armed forces. In general the same rules apply to this law as to Public Law 550. Application forms may be obtained at the Registrar's Office, the Veterans Administration, or a local Illinois Veterans Commission office

PUBLIC LAW 815

Public Law 815 makes vocational rehabilitation training available to veterans who incurred disabilities as a result of service in the armed forces during the periods of July 26, 1947, to June 26, 1950, and February 1, 1955, to the present. If the veteran is receiving compensation from the government because of disability incurred during either of these periods, he is eligible to apply for vocational rehabilitation. Under Public Law 815, his tuition, fees, and subsistence will be paid through the Veterans Administration. Further information may be obtained from the Registrar's Office, the Veterans Administration, or a local Illinois Veterans Commission office.

STATE ASSISTANCE

STATE TEACHER EDUCATION SCHOLARSHIPS

State scholarships are awarded each year through the office of the State Superintendent of Public Instruction to selected students who plan to enter the teaching profession. Graduates of recognized high schools who are in the upper half of their graduating classes are certified by the principals to county superintendents, who transmit these names to the Superintendent of Public Instruction. The Superintendent, in turn, may award scholarships to the highest-ranking graduates who signify their intentions to prepare to teach in the Illinois public schools. The scholarship covers the student's tuition and activity fees. Holders of these scholarships must apply for admission to the University not later than August 15 of the year in which the scholarship is awarded. Such a student must be registered in a teacher training program while using the scholarship. If a scholarship holder does not register for the next regular quarter following receipt of the scholarship, or if, having registered, he withdraws from the University, he forfeits his scholarship, unless he is granted a leave of absence by the University. Any student holding a scholarship who needs a leave of absence for the purpose of earning funds to defray his expenses while in attendance, on account of illness, or because of entrance into military service, may be granted such leave and allowed a period not to exceed six years in which to complete his course at the University. Request for a leave of absence should be addressed to the Registrar. A forfeited scholarship may be issued to the next highest-ranking student as shown on the list submitted to the Superintendent of Public Instruction. Recipients need to bring their scholarships to the Registrar's Office where they are kept on file. Currently, this scholarship covers tuition, student activity fee, and graduation fee.

STATE SCHOLARSHIP ACT

The state scholarship program, which is applicable at Southern Illinois University, exempts the student from certain fees. Interested students should consult their high school office early in their senior year for information on the program.

In addition to the regular program, there is an upperclass award program for sophomores, juniors, and seniors at the University. To participate in this program, a student must apply in the spring and must be ineligible to participate in the regular program. Details may be obtained from the Student Financial Assistance Office.

GENERAL ASSEMBLY SCHOLARSHIPS

Each member of the General Assembly (Senator or Representative) may nominate annually two persons of school age and otherwise eligible, from his district, one of which shall receive a certificate of scholarship in the University of Illinois, and the other a certificate of scholarship in any other state-supported university designated by the member. Interested students planning to attend Southern Illinois University should contact their Senator or Representative. This scholarship exempts the student from the paying of tuition, student activity fee, and graduation fee.

COUNTY SCHOLARSHIPS

This program provides for the awarding of two scholarships annually in each county to qualified graduating seniors in high school. The recipients will be selected on the basis of a competitive examination: the test battery administered through the American College Testing Program (A.C.T.). To be eligible, an applicant must be a resident of the county in which he applies. No student who has taken normal school, college, university, or other training following completion of a four-year high school course is eligible. Dates of application and procedures should be requested of the local high school principal or county superintendent of schools. This scholarship entitles the student to tuition, activity fee, and graduation fee for a period of four calendar years.

VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION

Under the State Board for Vocational Education is a division for the vocational rehabilitation and placement in remunerative employment of persons whose capacity to earn a living is or has been impaired. This includes those with physical handicaps of various kinds. Approved students receive all registration and tuition fees, book rental, and school supplies for nine months per year.

Persons who wish to consult with a representative may call at the Carbondale field office, located at 17B Chautauqua Housing Area on campus. Other field offices are maintained in the Murphy Building, Collinsville Ave., East St. Louis, and at 307 Henry, Alton. Students from other parts of the state who are now receiving training through the Illinois Division of Vocational Rehabilitation may consult any representative of the Board.

ILLINOIS MILITARY SCHOLARSHIP

Any person who served in the armed forces of the United States during World War I or World War II (including all service between September 16, 1940, and an undetermined date to be established in the future) may be eligible for the benefits of the Illinois Military Scholarship. To be eligible a person must have been (1) a resident of Illinois at the time of entering the service; or, if not an Illinois resident, a student at Illinois State University, Northern Illinois University, Eastern Illinois University, Western Illinois University, Southern Illinois University, or the University of Illinois at the time of his enlistment or induction; and (2) honorably discharged or separated.

This scholarship is awarded for four calendar years. It may be used for resident or extension study and covers tuition, activity fee, and graduation fee. Application for this scholarship should be directed to the Registrar's Office and must be accompanied by a copy of the discharge or separation papers.

THE GOVERNOR'S COMMITTEE FOR VETERAN'S REHABILITATION AND EMPLOYMENT

This committee will assist any veterans, but gives aid primarily to ex-servicemen and ex-servicewomen with impaired health or with limited physical abilities. Such persons may receive, at state expense, vocational training and education, plus health restoration treatments and prosthetic appliances. After proper training, they are given assistance in obtaining employment.

SCHOLARSHIPS, AWARDS, GRANTS-IN-AID, PRIZES

CARBONDALE CAMPUS

Abbott Foundation Grant-in-Aid

Alpha Delta Sigma Advertising Award

Alpha Phi Omega Scholarship (Zeta Nu Chapter)

Altrussa Club of Greater Charleston, South Carolina Scholarship Fund

American Chemical Society Fellow American Chemical Society Scholar

American Legion Auxiliary Unit 25 of Princeton, Indiana Grant-in-Aid

American Legion Department of Illinois Prize

American Legion Poppy Contest Award

Asian Studies Scholarship

Aviston Chamber of Commerce Award

Baseball Grant-in-Aid

Boosters Club of Hinsdale Township High School Scholarship

Borden Freshman Prize

Boys Tri-Ship Club of New Trier High School

Brunswick Area Student Aid Fund

Buddy Tuttle Memorial Scholarship

Bunker Hill Air Force Base Officers Wives Club Award

Cahokia Commonfields High School Student Council Grant

Carbondale Branch A.A.U.W. Scholarship

Carbondale Community High School Parents and Teachers Association Scholarship

Central Illinois Grant-in-Aid

Central Illinois Public Service Company Scholarship

Chemistry Graduate Fellowship Fund

Clarence V. Scheel American Legion Post No. 292 Award

C. M. Gooch Foundation Grant-in-Aid

Cook Foundation Scholarship

Copley Newspapers Scholarship

Dan Hopkins Advertising Scholarship

David J. Carver, Jr. Memorial Scholarship

Delta Sigma Theta Scholarship Award

Delta Theta Tau Scholarship in Home Economics

Department of Illinois Child Welfare Scholarship

District No. 25 Illinois Federation of Womens Clubs Scholarship

Dr. James W. Barrow Memorial Scholarship

Eastern Star of Illinois Grant-in-Aid

Edna C. Schultz Memorial Fund Grant-in-Aid

Edward Arthur Mellinger Education Foundation Award

Eleanor P. Eells Scholarship

Elementary Education Prize

Elgin High School Student Body Scholarship

Elijah P. Lovejoy Scholarship Grant

Elks National Foundation

Epsilon Lambda Award (Delta Theta Tau)

Eureka Grand Chapter of Eastern Star Scholarship

Evanston Kiwanis Club Award

Evergreen Park Community High School Scholarship

Faculty-Staff Aid to Students

Frank A. Burhess Foundation Scholarship

Frank Gannett Newspaperboy Scholarship

Frankfort Community High School Award

Fraternal Order of Eagles Memorial Foundation Award

Friends Foundation, Inc., Grant-in-Aid

F S Services, Inc. Award

George M. Pullman Educational Foundation

George Washington Carver Senior High School

Granite City Scholarship Foundation

Harry Bobbitt Memorial Scholarship Fund

Hearst Foundation Journalism Award

Helen Shuman Graduate Scholarship

Henry Bunn Memorial Scholarship Fund

Herbert T. McLean and Edyth M. Lanning Memorial Award

Highland Park High School Scholarship

Home Economics Scholarship

House of Kings Scholarship Award

Illinois Association of Highway Engineers Scholarship

Illinois Association of Park Districts Award

Illinois Congress of Parents and Teachers Association

Illinois Congress of Parents and Teachers Special Education Scholarship

Illinois Elks Association Award

Illinois Health Improvement Association Scholarship

Illinois Production Credit Associations Award

Illinois State Council of Carpenters Scholarship Award

Illinois Welfare Association District 10, Social Work Scholarship Award

Intergreek Honor and Service Award

James E. Cook Educational Scholarship

James Ford Bell Technological Award

James H. Stoever Memorial Fund for Retarded Children Award

Jewel Tea Company Grant-in-Aid

Joe Dougherty Award and Don Cross Scholarship

John Fitzgerald Kennedy Memorial Scholarship Fund

Joliet Township High School and Junior College Scholarship

June Vick Memorial Scholarship

14 · Southern Illinois University Bulletin

Junior Achievement Award

Junior Women's Club of Illinois Award

Kathleen Easley Memorial Award

Kiwanis Education Fund

Lake Placid Club Education Foundation Scholarship Fund

Larry Mann Advertising Scholarship

Lemasters Fine Arts Award

Liberty Baptist Church Scholarship Council Fund

Limerick Finance Scholarship

Luxene and Luxene Processing Laboratories Scholarship in Dental Laboratory Technology

Marathon Oil Foundation Award

Mary Louise Barnes Alumnae Scholarship in Home Economics

Maud E. Warwick Scholarship

Murphysboro Shrine Club Scholarship

National Association of American Business Club Scholarship

National Scholarship Trust Fund

National Society of Interior Designers Award

NCAA Awards

Newspapers Distributors Association of Chicago Scholarship

North Shore Community Service Award

NSSFNS Grant-in-Aid

Nurses' Training Program Award

P.E.O. International Peace Scholarship

Peoples Baptist Church Award

Phelps-Stokes Fund

Phi Eta Sigma Scholarship Prize

Plumbers and Steamfitters Local No. 160 Scholarship

Practical Nursing Award

Presser Foundation Music Scholarship

Princeton High School Scholarship

Psi Iota Xi, Alpha Tau Chapter Grant-in-Aid

Quill and Scroll Foundation Scholarship

Randolph County Education Association Grant-in-Aid

Roscoe Pulliam Memorial Alumni Scholarship

Sahara Coal Company Awards in Forestry

Saluki Award Fund

School of Technology Fellowship for Industry

Sigma Pi Memorial Fund

Sigma Gamma Rho Sorority Grant-in-Aid

Small Business Institute Scholarship Fund

Society of Crippled Children and Adults of Sangamon County Award

Southern Illinois District Council Activity Awards

Southern Illinois Editorial Association Award—Community Journalism

Southern Illinois League for Nursing Award

Southern Illinois Park and Recreation Award

Southern Illinois Reunion Council Award

Southern Illinois Symphony Orchestra Award

S.I.U. Faculty Mine Memorial Scholarship

St. Joseph Memorial Hospital Auxiliary Award

Summer Stock Company Activity Award

Susie E. Ogden Scholarship

Technical and Adult Education Awards and Prizes

The General Henry H. Arnold Educational Fund Grant-in-Aid

The Urban League of Pittsburgh, Inc. Grant-in-Aid

Thompson Point Scholarship

Topper's Club Award

Transportation Club of Little Egypt Award

Tri-County Electric Scholarship Award

University Women's Club Award Washington County H.I.A. Honor Award West Frankfort Business and Professional Womens Club Award West Frankfort Senior Women's Club Scholarship Western Electric Scholarship White Plains Student Aid Society, Inc. William J. Cook Fund Women's Relief Corps, G.A.R. Woody Hall Scholarship World University Service Award Youth Bowling Championship Grant-in-Aid

EDWARDSVILLE CAMPUS

Yuill Music Company Scholarship

Baseball College Scholarship Plan

Alumni Scholarship Fund

B. F. Goodrich Foundation Inc. Catholic War Veteran's Inc. Collinsville Education Association Collinsville Lions Club Tuition Award East St. Louis Opti-Mrs Club Edward A. Mellinger Education Foundation Elijah P. Lovejoy Memorial Grants Elks Scholarship Fund Federated Unity Club Award Formosa Student Fund Grand Chapter Order of Eastern Star Scholarship Grant Grand Guardian Council of Illinois I.O.J.D. Granite City Scholarships Foundation Henry Mitchell Post 799 Illinois Association of Club Women Junior Achievement of Mississippi Valley Inc. Mascoutah Tuesday Women's Club Pepsi-Cola Alton Bottling Company Grant Progressive Women's Club of Madison, Illinois Sigma Gamma Rho Sorority Grant St. Joseph League of Cahokia Student Fund The C. M. Gooch Foundation The James Massa Grant Wood River Woman's Club Scholarship

STUDENT LOAN FUNDS

Douglas Lawson Memorial Loan Fund

Dowdell Residence Halls Alumnae Loan Fund

CARBONDALE CAMPUS

Altrusa Club Student Loan Fund American Home Department of Herrin Women's Club Student Loan Fund Benton Student Loan Fund C. A. Robertson Memorial Loan Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation) Carbondale Branch AAUW Loan Fund Carbondale Business and Professional Women's Club Loan Fund Carbondale Rotary Club Student Loan Fund Class of 1939 Student Loan Fund Cox Memorial Loan Fund David E. Harwood Memorial Student Loan Fund Delta Theta Tau Student Loan Fund 25th District Illinois Federation of Women's Clubs Student Loan Fund

E. G. Lentz Memorial Student Loan Fund

General University and Men's Residence Halls Emergency Loan Fund

Harrisburg Women's Club Student Loan Fund

Harwood Hall Student Loan Fund

Helen A. Shuman Memorial Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Henry Strong Educational Foundation Loan Fund

Householder's Loan Fund

Illinois Congress of Parents and Teachers Loan Fund

Illinois Health Improvement Association Loan Fund

Interfraternity Council Student Loan Fund

James L. Feezor Athletic Student Loan Fund

Jane Holloway Loan Fund

June Vick Memorial Loan Fund

Kappa Chapter-Professional Bookmen of America Memorial Loan Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Letitia Walsh Loan Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Lionel Picheny Memorial Loan Fund

Lucy K. Woody Student Loan Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Malvine Beck Educational Student Loan Fund

Marion Business and Professional Women's Clubs Loan Fund

Mary M. Steagall Memorial Student Loan Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Men's Residence Halls Loan Fund

Pape Lukk Memorial Student Loan Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Pearle Sherman Student Loan Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Printing Service Loan Fund

Robert R. McCormick Graduate Student Loan Fund

Rosiclare Women's Club Student Loan Fund

Senior Class of 1962 Loan Fund

Shelby S. Shake Memorial Loan Fund

Southern Illinois University Alumni Association Student Loan Fund

Southern Illinois University Women's Club Loan Fund

The Stillman J. Stanard Memorial Student Loan Fund

The Thomas Clifford and Lora Alice Davis Memorial Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Tracey L. Bryant Memorial Loan Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

VTI Cooperative Retailing Loan Fund

William and Mary Gersbacher Student Loan Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

William McAndrew Memorial Student Loan Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

W. O. Brown Student Loan Fund

EDWARDSVILLE CAMPUS

Alumni Loan Fund General Student Loan Fund Sav-Mart College Student Program Sue McLaughlin Loan Fund United Student Aid Fund Loans Virgil L. Seymour Memorial Fund



SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY FOUNDATION

The Southern Illinois University Foundation is a non-profit corporation authorized to receive gifts and financial grants for the benefit of the University and to buy and sell property, and it renders service to the faculty in securing patents, copyright protection, and marketing outlets for inventions.

